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FOREWARNING

F the reader is looking for an analysis of conditions

and tendencies of modern rural life, he’ should not

turn to the following pages with the cxpecetation of
finding data that may be classified as such. If practical
advice as to church methods adapted to present day needs
is desired, the information' contained herein x;lay be
found inadequate,

This is simply the story of the way one little country
church journeyed outward into the heart of the mation
and thereby lost its life and achieved immortality.

“The day is coming,” declares Prof. Ralph A. Felton,
in his arresting book, Our T'empled Ilills* “when every
hill and valley will re-echo the music of the charch bell;
when every field and farm will feel the touch of Clris-
tian husbandmen; when the farm markets will be peopled
by men who do justice and love merey ; when every high-
way shall lead to a place of worship; when men’s hearts
will ‘be full of love for their neighbors; when children
will be taught rightcousness by devoted and trained
teachers; when the nation will recognize the value of the
rural church to our national idealism; when the ministers
will be proud to serve rural parishes; when those who
worship in city centers will scek the companionship of
rural folk because of their real worth.”

-

] “' ()](;' _T(.’tn/vh'd. Hills, by Ral[gll A. Felton, is a study of the church and
II!lfll life in An)crlcq and is published for gencral use in home mission study
flla.\si-\sl hy the (n[ulnml DE \V'umcn {m’ Home Missions and Missionary Educa-
ion Movement. may be obtained at your nearest denominatjons e POSH

Price: cloth, $1.00; paper, 60 cents. . fonal depasitory.
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ROYALSTON

THE STORY OF THE IMMORTALITY
OF ONE COUNTRY CHURCH

By Cor Hayne

HE (West) Royalston Baptist Chureh, which has
T served a Massachusctts rural community since 1768,

has eleven resident members on the roll; it began
with cight. At no time during the past sixty-five years
has it had more than fifty members, yet sinee its organi-
zation it has given to religion six ministers” wives and
twenty-nine ministers, among whom were at least two
fronticr lhome missionaries; to other Baptist churches,
scores of church members; to education, 168 teachers, one
of whom devoted a long period of her life on the foreign
mission field; to the country, nine soldiers in the War for
Independence, sixteen soldiers in the War of 1812, thirty-
one soldiers in the Civil War, and three in the World
War. This little church overgave its quota in the Vie-
tory Campaign; it gave its quota in the Ncew World Move-
ment on an allotment of $1,874.00.

They are saying that the Royalston church, now re-
duced to a membership of eleven, five of whom are over
70 years of age, soon may disband. ‘That is possible.
There are hospitable Baptist churches not far away as
distance is calculated in this day of automobiles. But
for this church to ccase to exist—that is impossible. Its
walls may crumble and the writlen record of its activities
fade with age, but, like the community that gave it birth,
its life will flow perpetually in ever widening channels,
to enrich countless cities, towns and rural communitics in
many lands,



P o m S e

' Origins

For 158 years Lhis Baptist church has been a part of
the town of Royalston, a rural community whosc strength
of youth has flowed away from her hills to other com-
munitics.  The procession has formed along Royalston's
main highways leading |outward and the line has never
doubled back.  Only a strong mother can go on decade
after decade giving life like this to make life possible
clsewhere.  Virtue and ' strength may have gone out of
her in the sons and daughters whom she gave to the
nation, but Royalston, through her losses, is typical of
a long list of rural neighborhoods that cannot dic as
long as the nation endures.

The origin and character of the church cannot rightly
be viewed save in the light of the origin and character
of the community. Nearly cevery home became a temple
of God. The church, the school and the town hall were
real centers of community interest and welfare.  The
town mecting was the finest expression of democracy the
world has known.

The records show that Royalston was the last town-
ship in the County of Worcester to be disposed of by
grants, charters and public sale.  Among the proprictors
who received the original deed to Royalston’s 30,577
acres, given December 27, 1752, were Benoni Moore,
Joseph Petty, Robert Cooper, James Otis (of Revolu-
tionary oratorical fame), Isaac Royal and (at a later
date) John IHancock, the first governor of Massachusetts
and the first signer of the Declaration of Independence.
These men held their meetings at the “Buanch of Grapes”
Tavern, Boston, and planned well for the settlement of
the town.  Lilley B. Caswell, in his “Ilistory of Royal-
ston,” whicl the writer has used as a source for much
of the information in this sketeh, asserts that
Not a town in this grand 'old Commonwealth of historic Lowns
can boast of a better beginning or a more reputable heritage
of name und blood. The proprietors and early setllers of Royal-
ston were men of charncter whose Influence can he  traced
throughout the whole structire of our nation, and they laid, here
on these splendid hills, the, foundation of a town in which the
sterling qualities of the glorious days of old New England have
come down through the generations.
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The founders of Royalston were required, by condi-
tions named in the deed, to settle sixty familics on Royal-
ston soil, “each with a eleaving and a house,” and o
provide for them a meeling house.  One sixty-third part
of the entire grant and purchase was devoted to cach of
the following objects: “a scttlement for the first ordained
minister, for the ministerial support, and for the public
school.”  'The Honorable Isaae Royal, for whom the town
was named, at the first meeting of the proprictors in 1752,
pledged twenty-five pounds sterling for a Congregational
meeting house.  The Irench War intervening, the actual
settlement of Royalston did not begin until 1762, when
six families moved in.  Others followed rapidly. They
were “of the best blood of the Colony,” records our his-
torian.  The town contributing the largest number of
these early settlers was Sutton, Mass.  Rehobotl’s quota
contained the Bullock and Peck familics, which in later
vears had the distinction of producing a governor each,
namely, Governor Alexander H. Bullock of Massachusetts
and Governor Asahel Peck of Vermont.  From the same
town came the Bliss family, whose members for a century
contributed much to the upbuilding of the town of Royval-
ston.  Captain John Frye, the “Yero of Crown Point,”
also eame from Sutton, Mass., and became associated
with Isaaec Royal in the settlement of Royalston.  Al-
though a soldier of renown, at home he was a deacon in
the local Congregational chureh, town clerk and an occa-
sional public school teaclier.  His deseendants have served
in many useful capaeitics in a public way in various
states. He was the descendant in the fourth generation
of John TFrye of Basing, Hants, England, who also was
an ancestor of Senator Frye of Maine,

Colonel Isane Royal, a citizen and selectman succes-
sively in Charlestown and Medford, gave generously of
his time and means to both towns. He presided at the
town meeting in Medford when resolutions against the
Stnmp Act were passed, yet he was always loyal to his
king and when the Revolution opened he returned to
England,  In 1779 he wrote that he longed to rceturn to
spend his last days in Ameriea, but death prevented a
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fulfillment of the wish, Tijs gift of two thousand acres—
mostly Royalston soil—to found a professorship of law
in Harvard University constituted the beginning of the
Harvard Law School.  When Isaac Royal fled the country
as a Tory the fathers of Royalston did not change the
name of their town. In referring to this circumstance in

The Honorable Isaac Royal
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his address at the Centennidl Anniversary of Royvalston.
Governor Bullock said:

No town was more palriotic than this in the Revolution, bul |
rejoice that ils citizens appear never for one moment Lo have
thought of piving up their eorporale name heeanse their hene-
factor had estranged himself from their polilical opinions.  The
nwme of this town and the title of the Cumbridge law profes-
sorship may honorably be retained in his remembrance.

On the occasion of the 150th anniversary of Rovalston,
the late Senator Henry Cabot Lodge was one of the rep-
resentatives of the state and nation who attended the
celebration to address its citizens and by his presence
show respect to the long established community.

Rev. Joseph TLee, first pastor of the Congregational
church, served that body fifty years; the first scttled
pastor of the Baptist church, Rev. Whitman Jacobs, in-
stalled Dee. 18, 1770, remdined on the field nincteen
vears. T'wo of the cight persons comprising the member-
ship of the Baptist chureh when organized in 1768 were
Isane and Sarah Estey, the #ra:xbgr:mdpm'cnts of Jacob
istey of Brattleboro, Vt., the founder of the firm of
organ makers of that name. Isaac Estey beeame the fivst
deacon of the West Royalston Baptist churceh and hLis son
held the same position.  Jacob Fstey, the organ manu-
facturer, was onc of the founders of the Baptist chureh
of Brattleboro and for many 'years served the church, as
deacon.

Rufus Builock, father of Governor Bullock, by his will,
gave liberal sums of money to the Congregational and
Baplist churches of Rovalston for endowment and $5.000
to the common schools of the township.  Samuel Chester
Gale of Minneapolis and Joel Gates of Burlington, Vt.,
both native sons, gave generous sums to perpetuate the
Baptist work at Royalston.  They did not forget whot
they owed the neighborhood where they had spent tle
days of their vouth,

In the everyday, neighborhood concerns of Rovalston,
Governor Alexander T1. Bullock, of Massachusctts, always
took a lively interest. Ile was more than happy, as one
of its native sons. to aceept the invitation to deliver the
commemorative address, August 23, 1865, at the celobra-
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(fovernor Alexander JJ. Balloek:

tion of the one hundredth anniversary of the town. [le
was at the time presiding officer of the Massachusctts
House of Representatives.  In his address (a copy of
which is in the New York Public Library), Mr. Bullock
took occasion to dwell at length upon the history of the
churches of Royalston. Of the carly Baptists, who com-
posed about onc-fourth of the forty-two original families
of Royalston, Mr. Bullock said:

These people had no Boston proprictors to aid them, but relicd
upon their own limited resources and large faith. The manner
of their proceeding at that time, so simple, so carnest, so singu-
lar, quite wins upon one who will examine their records. . . .
Their relations with the town and with the first parish (Comgre-
gational), over the period of century, have been conciliatory,
honorable and generous.

8
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Concerning the erection of the sccond Baptist meeting

house, in 1805, the speaker said:
I suspeet they had sons of thunder in those days, for we are
told that upon the occaston of the raising of this meeling house
the prayer of Elder Hodge was heard at the distance of half
a mile.

Of his neighborhood in general he said:

Not another town s known to me in which the relations of the
citizens and the churehes have <heen for o hundved years without
interruption so harmonions and felicitous,

At the Royalston céntennial exercises, Albert Bryant,
M.A., another son who had gone forth “with honor from
these hills to serve or rule,” reminded his hearers of
those

“Customs of our fathers, pleasant, passing oul of wind,

Round which, on this day of memory, we memorial vy
bind, . .,

How the apple bees ih autunm make the farm-house kitchen
ring,

As the merry swains' and maidens pare the frait, and cut,
and string. | |,

Then the haskings in October, when the old barn floor appears

Jubilant with corn in bundles, and the heaps of shining cars.

O'er the dimly lighted rafters the queer imp of frolic walks,

And the Taughter of the huskers drowns the rustling of the
stalks,

Afler harvesting was over, came, and still will come the day,

When the house iy s L i ovder, and the work is Taid AWy

And the old folks at the fireside, in their newest coat and
Fown, .

Welcome home, to spend ']‘h:mksgi\'ing, all the children of
the town. |

Often when the snows were Tevel, and young hearts were free
of cure, !

Came the sleigh rides in the moonlight of the frosty winter
air. oL, ;

You remember youths and maidens whose dear voices never
tire, !

At the merry singing meelings  to  instruct the village
choir. . . |

Some the meeting hoise remember at the joining of the
streets, :

With the Gabriel o'er the pulpit, and square pews with
slamming seats,

There our fathers held town meclings in their demoeratie
way, !

And on Sundays, with their households, heard the preachers
preach and pray. .




Oue pale-hrowed and gentle preacher some of us eannot
forget,

On the Sea of Glass now singing, where the wild waves do
not fret,

To the tree of life he led us, underncath the healing leaves,

And his farewell smile goes with us till we come with many
sheaves.”

Walked Out Behind His Trunk

In 1845, Samuel Chester Gale, a tanncr’s apprentice,
left Royalston to enter New Salem Academy, to begin, at
seventeen years of age, his preparation for college. In
alter ycars, in referring to that departure from his birth-
place, he described vividly his sctting forth, typical no
doubt of the out-going of other young people of the
countryside, girls and boys who were ncver to return to
the old home to abide therc permancntly. Said Samuel
Gale:

Just forty years ago a boy of seventcen came out for the first
time from the hills of Rovalston. Peace and honor attend that
ancient town! I came as a student to New Salem Academy.
What a memorable undertaking that was! The sun never broke
upen such a day before. T made the journey on foot behind a
neighbor’s wagon wherein was stored my box of valuables. The
procession was not an imposing one, but in my imagination that
wagon, that box and I, on that momentous crrand, was the king
and his retinue with chariot and bhanners.

IFour years later Samuel Gale graduated from Yale,
distinguished ‘as the class orator and a member of Phi
Beta Kappa,  With his younger brother, Harlow, he
became identified with important business enterprises in
Minncapolis.  He was a pioneer in many organized activi-
ties that made for the material, intellectual and moral
progress of that city, including the public library, Min-
neapolis Athenacum, Board of Tdueation, Academy of
Nitural Sciences, Minneapolis Society of Fine Arts and
Board of Trade. He was president of the Minneapolis
ixposition and, for a time, of the City Council.

Samuel Gale was identified with the Unitarian chureh,
to which he gave generous contributions. but he never lost
his affection for the little Royalston Baptist church in
which Te had heard the sweet voice of his pious mother
glorify the Savior in gospel song. One of his gifts to this
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rural church was the Baptist f):xl‘sml:lgu and grounds.  An-
other of his notable gifts to New England communitics
was the Damon Memorial Library of Idolden, Mass.

Fathef Gale

Amory Gale, brother of Samuel, for sixteen years gen-
cral missionary of the American Baptist 1Tome Mission
Society in Minnesota, was cohverted as a boy of sixteen
on his mother’s farm, and three years later, while a stu-
dent in Worcester Academy, deelared his intention to
become a minister.  In Worecster, in August, 1837, he
preached his first sermon. He graduated from Brown
University in 1843 and from Newton Theological Insti-
tution in 1846. It is rccorded that for a part of the time
while at Brown he journeyed all the way to Royalston
to preach on Sunday, walking forty miles to Worcester.
As a result of his zeal a revival took place in his native
town that was so far-reaching that the historian of Royal-
ston makes mention of it.  After ten years as pastor in
Ware and ILce, Mass., he was appointed by the Home
Mission Socicty as onc of its missionarics in Wisconsir.
Then followed his pastoral charge of the Tirst Baptist
church of Minneapolis, which terminated in August, 1859,

The Hills of Royalston “When (he Snowes Are Level”
11



when he was called to general missionary work under the
Minnesota State Convention  (which he had helped to
organize) and the Home Mission Socicty. In a labor of
love and rich fruitage that extended over a period of
sixteen vears, he was known as the “general itinerant and
exploring agent in Minnesota,” and is so listed on the
missionary roster of the Ilome Mission Society. For
transportaton he could not depend upon railroads, for
there were none in the great distriet under his care, and
the roads were poor, yvet the reported number of miles
covered behind his Indian ponies exceeded 100,000, e
forded rivers, toiled through mud and rain and slept on
the ground beneath his wagon when better shelter was
not at hand.

The following is a partial record of Father Gale's six-
teen years of service in Minnesota: sermons, 5,000; family
ealls, 16,000; books sold or donated, 25,000 volumes;
tracts distributed, 256,000 pages; letters written, 10,720,
“During all this time,” comments the historian of Royal-
ston, “we find but one record of vacation, and in that
five weeks he prepared and delivered the centennial ad-
dress of the Baptist church of his native town.”

Amory Gale is remembered in Minnesota lovingly as
“Iather Gale.”  While he lived his associates delighted
to honor him. The late veteran among state secrctarics,
Dr. 1o, R. Pope of Minnesota, in a missionary history of
that state, said of him:

At the Minnesota Association in 1857, Rev. Amory Gale, pastor
of the First Baptist church of Minneapolis, offered a resolution,
which was’ adopted, suggesting the organization of a State Con-
vention, and a committee was appointed to confer with other
Associntions.  Tn 1858 a preliminary organization was effected,
and on August 29, 1859, at Winona, the Minnesota Baptist State
Convention was permanently organized, with George Tl Keith
as president and Rev. J. 1. Pope seeretary. The Convention
voted “to raise at least $100 for missionary purposes.” At this
time there were five Associations (including the Swedish Con-
ference) and 66 churches in the state.

For a few years the Minnesota Baptist State Convenlion pave
special attention Lo educational matters, especially the Baplist
school at Tastings. Rev. Amory Gale, who was appointed by
the IHome Mission Society, was sustained in part by the State
Convention from the very beginning of its life. Iis untiring
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zeal, his broad sympathy, his; deep interest in people of all
nationalities, made him an ideal pioneer worker and o wise master
builder. Fhe debl of Minnesota Baplists of every nalionalily {o
. . 0] H . M *
this man of God can never he pver-estimaled or repaid.

1
When his physical strength had been spent in king-
dom service Amory Gale resigned his commission in Min-
nesota and started on a tour to the Holy Land. A plain,
white, marble slab in the C(‘l‘llh’l)l Cemetery at Joppa,
above the plains of Sharon, marks the final resting place
of the mortal remains of this great fronticrsman,

IHarlow A. Gale, the youngest son of Isaac and Tamar
Gale of Royalston, was a graduate of Millburg Academy
and Union College, and taught School carly in life, In
later years he organized the, first suceessful large auction
sale of plotted land and built the first public market in
Minneapolis.

A Missionary of the Vinton Vintage

Miss Bertha Winifred Clark, daughter of Rev. and
Mrs, Albert Vinton Clark, was born in (West) Royval-
ston and educated at Colgate Academy  and Columbian
(now George Washington) University,  She studied one
summer at Cornell University.  She was appointed by
the Woman’s American Baptist Forcign Mission Socicty
(Socicty of the Fast), and on September 18, 1907, sailed
from Boston for Burma, artiving in Rangoon November
3. She was stationed at the Sgaw Karen School at
Rangoon and later at Bhamo. Concerning her coming
Mrs. Vinten of the Burman ficld reported in 1908 the
following:

An event of great importance to the school is that Miss Bertha
Clark has come to our help. Application bad been made to the
Board for help and an carnest request that Miss Clark be sent
Lo us. We felt we had a special claim to her, as she is nicee of
the first Vinton who came out as a missionary and so belonged
to the family.  We are all so thankful to have her here and the
Karens are delighted. Miss Claik is now settled in her rooms at
the girls' house and there are cighty-six in her eare, all girls
but a few little bovs in care of clder sisters, and as school has
beenin session only one day of the new term there will be more
coming in. We hope pgreat things from Miss Clark’s heing here.
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Tn 1912 Miss Clark was transferred to the Shan Bur-
mese School at Bhamo. After Miss Clark had served
acceptably as a teacher on the Burman field for seven
vears, she returned to the Uniled States to begin the
pioncer Christian Americanization work for the Woman's
Awmcrican Baptist Home Mission Society.  Her mission-
ary associatcs remember her as an efficient and gracions

colaborer,

An Introduction to Royalston

Not soon to be forgotten is that ride from Athol to
the Shepardson homestead one week after the February
(1926) blizzard. The main traveled road to Warwick was
fairly passable, but the branch road to Long Pond was
unmarked by automobiles. Shortly our Ford was in the
diteh.  Yankee grit and the good, old-time spirit of “do
your neighbor a good turn” (the driver owns a taxi stand
in Athol) blanketed all appeals to turn back. A mile
further along the road a robust young man in a big
touring car approached along the narrow track. To one
stranger in that part of rural New FEngland it seemed

e e g T R 1 -
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The Shepardson TTomestead
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that a problem to defy even a teaflic expert was immi-
nent.  The big car ahead dove into a snow bank and came
to a halt, the rear wheels not entirely out of the road.
Here was finesse impromptu. The yonug man in the
ditehed ear was pleasautly methodical about his moyve-
ments,  He came forward with a shovel and helped to
widen the path around his car; the Ford passed and its
occupants walked back to help extricate a car owner who
unconsciously had given Rovalston township an illuminat-
ing introduction. -

The Shepardson Hormestead

In its beautiful sctting of sloping meadows and wood
lots backed by high rugged hills, the Shepardson home,
close beside the friendly road, invites one to stop and
enter.  The name Shepardson has been attached to the
{arm for over 125 years. The Anierican branch of the
family began with Daniel Shepardson, who landed  at
Salem, Mass,, in 1628, a vovager [rom Fngland sccking
a home and religious freedom. ‘ ,

Danicl, who moved with his parents. Jonathan and
Abigail  (I'uller)  Shepardson, from  Templeton, Mass,,
to Royalston in 1790, was the first of the name to own
the Shepardson homestead.  His son, Liri, and grandson,
Luke B., in turn cultivated this farm.  The latter, who
still occupies the place, has for M:m_\' vears served as
deacon of the Royalston Baptist church and selectman
of the Town of Royalston.” The golden wedding of Dea-
con and Mrs. Shepardson was eclebtated at the Shepard-
son homestead June 23, 1925, i

From an ecarly day the Shepardson family became iden-
tified with the Royalston Baptisti church.  From the
Shepardson homestead and from the little chureh on the
cross-roads have gone out to othdr places Shepardson
voung people who were destined, and their children after
them, to serve worthily as community builders.

The original homesteader, Danicl Shepardson, son of
Jonathan and  Abigail Shepardson, married  Pradence,
daughter of David and Flizabeth Cook, Sept. 9, 1801,
Coneerning these devout pioncers, a son wrote:
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My parents were of the Puritanic type fully believing that Sun-
day was the Lord’s Day, and that it was their duty to worship
Gad in his sanctuary on that day, and, although five miles from
church, all must go.  As their family was large, consisting of
six sons and four daughters, some must neeessarily walk, but
none were excused from going,

To them were born ten children: Jonathan, Pruda, Lity.
Eliza, David (died in infancy), Millic, Danicl, David
Cook, John and Eri.

Jonathan, oldest child of Danicl and Prudence Shepard-
son, born in Royalston in 1802, was a public school teacher
carly in life and later engaged in the lumber business. He
sawed boards from logs by the old-fashioned up and down
method.  He was a deeply spiritual man and active in the
little Baptist church at Royalston, Two of his sons, Lucius
Franklin and Joseph Henry, became ministers and hoth
were ordained in the 60°s in Princcton, Maine. Tucius
was for forty-four years a pastor in New Lngland. Joseph,
soon after his ordination, at the invitation of Rev. Awmory
Gale, general missionary in Minnesota, assumed charge of
a large missionary ficld in that state. e served the
Baptist churcl of Becker fifteen yvears as pastor and held
the office of clerk of the town thirty-cight years.

Lucius Shepardson had one son, Frank 1. Shepardson,
best known to Baptists as treasurer of Colgate University
and associate professor of Greek in the same institution.

Danicl Shepardson, third son of Daniel and Prudence
Shepardson, was the first member of the family to leave
the countryside to attend college.  After spending two years
at Amherst College and two years at Brown University,
he traveled by stage and canal routes to Ohio where he
achieved an imperishable record as a minister and cducator.
For sixteen ycars he was a member of the Board of Fx-
aminers and Inspector of Schools in Cincinnati, nincteen
years the principal of the Young ILadies’ Tnstitute, Gran-
ville, Ohio, and served two terms, aggregating twenty-six
vears, as a member of the Board of Trustees of Denison
University. He was the founder of Shepardson College,
the women’s department  of  Denison  University.  His
daughter, Mary E. Shepardson Pomeroy, was the anthor
of “Love’s Crucible,” a novel of religious content.  Tour
sons graduated from Denison University.  Francis Way-
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John, fifth son of Daniel and Prudence Shepardson,
was ordained as a Baptist minister at New Salem and
Prescott, Mass., in June, 1842. He had commenced to
teach when only 13 years of age, his school being made up
of 40 boys and girls whose ages ranged from five to twenty-
one. He founded the Highland Institute at Worcester,
Mass. Mr. Almond Smith, of Athol, Mass., whose memory
reaches as far back as the carly ’50’s, rec.alls "I()lm Shep-
ardson’s visits to the district school of his n(flghborhood,
when on every sixth Saturday were held religious exer-
cises.

Crowding Who’s Who

Although limited space forbids it, ext?ndcd ment;)(in lof
other interesting families of Royalston_ rr'nght Pr(;ﬁ(t;n y“ig
made, irrespective of their church aﬁzi\l;?l:téirll;,f::;]uy’l (,%t he
which  came  Eliab
Wight Metcalf,
who drafted the
original county local
option bill for Mainc
and Ohio, a bill ad-
vocated by the Ohio
Anti-Saloon  Leaguc
of which he was one
of the founders, and
[saac Stevens Metealf,
founder of Worcester
Military Academy,
over which lhe pre-
sided thirty-two years;
the  Bullock family
and  Governor Alex-
ander H. Bullock of
Massachusetts; the
Pecks, who gave Ver-
mont a governor; the
Ballou family, the

Congregational Church of A"{("“m" founder (_’f
" Royalston, Mass. which  was  Maturin
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Ballou, co-proprictor with Roger Williams in the Provi-
dence Plantations, and from which came Eliza Ballou,
mother of President Garfield, reared in New ampshire in
a county bordering Worcester County, Rev. Maturin Bal-
lou, the first Baptist minister in New Hampshire, four of
whose six sons are said to have distinguished themsclves
as preachers.  Hosea Ballou, firkt president of Tufts
College, and Almando Ballou, “forty-niner,”” who erected
the “first church,” as he called it, in Sacramento, by plac-
ing boards and hoxes under a large tree, in order that
divine services might be held, before any buildings had
been ereeted in the camp.  Natives of Royalston also
were: Major General Lysander Cutler, Commander of
“The Tron Brigade,” of Civil War fame; James Ormond
Wilson, for fifteen years superintendent of public in-
struction in Washington, D." ¢, and until his death,
April 2, 1911, at s6 years of age, actively engaged
in affajrs pertaining to education, including that of Negro
youth; Honorable George Carter Richardson, mavor of
the City of Cambridec during Civil War times; Nancy
Priest, author of “Over the River,” a poem  widely
quoted; and Rev. Albert Bryant, missionary  of the
American Board to Turkey. ?

At Home

There is a little band that makes up the membership of
the Baptist church at Royalston: Deacon Luke B. Shep-
ardson, Mrs. I.. B. (Ellen 'I‘mldy) Shcpardson, John
Shepardson, Miss Lucy E, Shepardsoh, Mrs, S. S. Stewart,
Eri 8. Stewart, Miss Tina Stewart; Deacon Myron v,
Sherwood, Mys. M. W, Sherwood and the latter’s parents,
Mr. and Mrs, Chas. Sumner (Stmw‘bcrry) Pratt.  They
number cleven and they arc all “prosent.” Phe evening
before the data for this sketel) was. gathered, 80 people
attended a social at the Royalston Baptist chureh,

Our last, reverent view of this histq‘)ric countryside from
which have gone forth an army of cru§a(1i11g boys and girls
was taken from the stone wal] surrounding the litt]e neigh-
borhood cemetery near the Shepardson homestead. Here

Tie all that is mortal of some who did not leave home 1o
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engage in the work of othep communities. Through the
years they helped to “keep the neighborhood  going,” with
its homes, its churches, its schools and other constructive
agencies yeeding their full devotion of heart, mind and
soul. Hfre these “home folks” lived and died and our
brief record can include no,individual, account of their
scltless living.

Out of their silence they 'speal to the living with the
eloquence of brave and sincere achicvement. Their appeal
to the Christian forces today is through the same Spirit
that controlled them, that secks to have its way with us in
the promotion of the peace and unity necessary to a ful-
fillment of the Great Commission.
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